
 

 11 Exhibition Street 

Melbourne VIC 3000 

GPO Box 1994 

Melbourne VIC 3001 

Telephone: (03) 8661 7777 

International: (613) 8661 7777 

Facsimile: (03) 9655 0401 

Email: melbourne@fwa.gov.au 

 

13 October 2010 

Mr John Dixon 
Acting Branch Secretary, Australian Education Union, New South Wales Branch 
22-23 Mary Street 
Surry Hills NSW 2010 
By email: jdixon@nswtf.org.au 
 
cc: Steve Ruzic 
Australian Education Union, New South Wales Branch 
22-23 Mary Street 
Surry Hills NSW 2010 
By email: sruzic@nswtf.org.au 
 
cc: M A Adam-Smith 
Director, Audit & Assurance Services, Grant Thornton 
PO Locked Bag Q800 
QVB Post Office 
Sydney NSW 1230 
By Email: info.nsw@granthornton.com.au 

Dear Mr Dixon 

Financial report for the AEU NSW Branch for the year ended 31 December 2009 

(FR2010/10301) 

I acknowledge receipt of the financial report of the New South Wales Branch of the Australian 

Education Union for the year ended 31 December 2009. The documents were lodged with Fair 

Work Australia on 8 June 2010 and further documents lodged on 1 October 2010. 

The financial report has now been filed. 

I have also attached an addendum for your consideration in which I make comments to assist 

you when you next prepare a financial report. You are not required to take any further action in 

respect of the report lodged.  If you wish to discuss any matters further, I can be contacted on 03 

8661 7929 or via email on eve.anderson@fwa.gov.au. A copy of this letter and addendum will be 

forwarded to your auditor. 

Yours sincerely 

 

Eve Anderson 

Tribunal Services and Organisations 

Fair Work Australia 

Tel: 03 86617929 

Email: eve.anderson@fwa.gov.au 

mailto:jdixon@nswtf.org.au
mailto:sruzic@nswtf.org.au
mailto:info.nsw@granthornton.com.au
mailto:eve.anderson@airc.gov.au
mailto:eve.anderson@fwa.gov.au
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The following comments are made to assist you when you next prepare a financial report. 

1. Concise Report  

The opening statement of the Concise Report states that ‘These accounts are a concise view...’ 

However the concise report is required to include a statement that it is a concise report 

(subsection 265(3)(e) of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (RO Act)). It future 

please ensure that the Concise Report states that it is a concise report. 

Regulation 161(1)(e) of the Fair Work Regulations 2009 (the Regulations) requires a concise 
report to include ‘a statement that the concise financial report has been derived from the full 
report and cannot be expected to provide as full an understanding of the financial performance, 
financial position and financial and investing activities of the reporting unit as the full report.’  The 
first page of the Concise Report states that it is derived from the full report, but does not state 
that it ‘cannot be expected to provide as full an understanding of the financial performance, 
financial position and financial and investing activities of the reporting unit as the full report.’ 
Please ensure that this statement is made in future concise reports. 

2. Reproduction of section 272 

The first page of the concise report refers to section 274(1), (2) and (3).  This should refer to 

section 272(1), (2) and (3).  

Also the wording reproduced in the concise report and in note 4 of the full report is from outdated 

legislation. Instead the wording should read as follows: 

272 Information to be provided to members or General Manager 

(1) A member of a reporting unit, or the General Manager, may apply to the reporting 

unit for specified prescribed information in relation to the reporting unit to be made 

available to the person making the application. 

(2) The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and 

the manner in which, the information is to be made available. The period must not be 

less than 14 days after the application is given to the reporting unit. 

(3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1). 

3. Related Party Transactions 

Australian Accounting Standard AASB 124 at paragraph 17 requires that if there have been any 
transactions between related parties, the nature of the related party relationship and the amount 
of transactions shall be disclosed. Note 4 of the full report discloses that the NSW Teachers 
Federation is a related party and also the amount received in membership fees (in accordance 
with AASB 124(17)).  However I understand that the grant of $2000 disclosed in the statement of 
comprehensive income was a grant from the NSW Teachers Federation.  In future years all 
transactions with the NSW Teachers Federation (and any other related parties), including grants, 
should be included in the notes pertaining to related party transactions. 

4. Operating Report - Review of Principal Activities 

Subsection 254(2)(a) of the RO Act requires an operating report to contain a review of the 

principal activities of the reporting unit, the results of those activities and any significant changes 

in the nature of the those activities. I note that the operating report provides a review of the 

principal activities, but does not explain the results of these activities. Please note that subsection 

254(2)(a) of the RO Act does not require a financial result. It requires a description of the results 

from providing services to members. In future years please ensure the Operating Report contains 

a description of the results of its principal activities.  

http://www.fwa.gov.au/documents/legislation/fw_orgs_reg_act/fw_reorgs_act.htm#P3847_376254
http://www.fwa.gov.au/documents/legislation/fw_org_regs_con/fw_orgs_regs_con.htm#P1613_147150
http://www.fwa.gov.au/documents/legislation/fw_orgs_reg_act/fw_reorgs_act.htm#P3693_359326
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5. Operating Report - Significant changes in financial affairs 

Subsection 254(2)(b) of the RO Act requires an operating report to give details of any significant 

changes in the reporting unit’s financial affairs during the year. The Operating Report states that 

there no significant changes in the state of affairs of the union.  In future years this statement 

should address whether there were any significant changes in the financial affairs of the union. 

6. Committee of Management Statement: two or more reporting units  

Both the Concise Report and the Full Report include two Committee of Management statements 
made and signed on 14 August 2010, however only one should be lodged with each report. One 
of the two statements does not address whether the financial records have been kept in a 
consistent manner to each of the other reporting units (as required by item 25(e) of the Reporting 
Guidelines).  In future years please ensure that the Committee of Management statement 
addresses whether or not the financial records have been kept in a consistent manner.  

7. Auditor’s qualifications 

Regulation 4 defines an approved auditor as a person who is a member of CPA Australia, The 

Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia or the National Institute of Accountants, and holds 

a current Public Practice Certificate. In all likelihood the auditor is such a person. However, it is 

our preference that this is made explicit in future auditor’s reports. 

 

http://www.fwa.gov.au/documents/legislation/fw_orgs_reg_act/fw_reorgs_act.htm#P3693_359326
http://www.fwa.gov.au/index.cfm?pagename=regorgsfrguidelines
http://www.fwa.gov.au/index.cfm?pagename=regorgsfrguidelines
http://www.fwa.gov.au/documents/legislation/fw_org_regs_con/fw_orgs_regs_con.htm#P282_15501


Australian Education Union 
llllll!llllllli'~,~~ New South Wales Branch 

Federal Office: 120 Clarendon Street, South Melbourne VIC 3205 
NSW Branch Office: 23-33 Mary Street, Surry Hills NSW 2010 

7 June 2010 

Fair Work Australia 
GPO Box 1994 
MELBOURNE VIC 3001 

Delivery by email: iain.stewart@fwa.gov.au 

Dear Sir/Madam 

In reply please quote: 

766 /201 0/JI:sr 

Re: Australian Education Union (NSW Branch) Financial Documents for the year ended 31 
December 2009. 

Please find enclosed duly completed: 

a) Certificate of Secretary 
b) Certified copy of the financial report for the year ending 31 December 2009 including auditors 

report. 

Yours sincerely 

··· ·~··· ···· · · ·· ·· ··· · ·· · · · ···· · · · Joff-N· j-~0iNG 
BRANCH SECRETARY 



Certificate of Secretary 
s268 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 

I, John Irving, being the Branch Secretary of the Australian Education Union (New South Wales 
Branch), certify: 

that the documents lodged herewith are copies of the full report, and the concise report 
referred to in s268 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009; and 

that the full report, was provided to a Committee of Management meeting on the 13th 
March 201 0; and 

that the Committee of Management at its 13th March 2010 meeting passed a resolution to 
publish a concise report free of charge to its members in the journal "Education" as 
published and mailed to members on 3rd May 2010 in accordance with s265 (5) (b). 

that the full report was presented to a Committee of Management meeting of Australian 
Education Union (NSW Branch) on 51

h June 2010 in accordance with section 266 (3) of 
the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

For and on behalf of the Australian Education Union (NSW Branch) 

···~····················· JohQ-~~i-~g .. 
Branch Secretary 

Date: 7 June 2010 



" I certify this to be a copy of the 
original" 

j~it~~····· ................. . 
BRANCH SECRETARY 

AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION 
UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

ABN: 86 600 150 697 

FINANCIAL REPORT 
31 DECEMBER 2009 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMENT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEARENDED31DECEMBER2009 

Your committee present the report on the union for the financial year ended 31 December 2009. 

Members of Committee 

The name of the members of committee of management in office at any time during or since the 
end of the financial year is : 

Gary Zadkovich 
Nola Edsall 
John Irving 
Garry Grant 
John Dixon 
Phil Bradley 
Michael De Wall 
Nicole Calnan 
Kathy Deacon 
David Ferguson 
Dennis Long 
Debbie Westacott 

Brenda Seymour 
Pamela Gregg 
Robert Lipscombe 
Sue Simpson 
Deborah Marten 
Linda Simon 
Frank Barnes 
Wendy Currie 
Jenny Diamond 
Janet I-Jannaford 
Charmaine O'Sheades 
David Wynne 

Sui-Linn White 
Geoff Turnbull 
Maurie Mulheron 
Peter Wt!son 
Maree 0'1-Jalloran 
Khyiah Angel 
Rod Brown 
Peter de Graff 
Sally Edsall 
Joan Lemaire 
Fionie Stavert 

'The members of committee of management have been in office since the start of the financial year to 
the date of this report urt!ess otherwise stated. 

Operating Results 
The loss of the union forthe financial year was $887 (2008: loss of $1,565). 

Review of Operations 
A review of the operations of the union during the financial year and the resclts of those operations 
found that during the year, the entity continued to engage in its principal activity, the restt!ts of which 
are disclosed in the attached financial statements. 

Significant Changes in State of Affairs 
No significant changes in the state of affairs of the union occurred during the financial year. 

Principal Activity 
The principal activity of the entity during the financial year was promotion of union activities within 
the education sector. No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the year. 

After Balance Date Events 
No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly 
affected or may significantly affect the operations of the union, the results of those operations, ortl1e 
state of affairs of the union in future financial years. 

Employees/Members 
The union did not have any employees during the year. The number of financial members at 31 
December2009 was 62,419 (2008: 62,403) 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMENT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEARENDED31DECEMBER2009 

Superannuation Trustees 
No officer or member of the organisation holds a posltlon as a trustee or director of a 
superannuation entity or exempt public sector superannuation scheme where the criterion 
for holding such position is that they are an officer or member of an organisation. 

Rights of members to resign 

Members may resign from the union in accordance with rule 17, which reads as follows: 
"17 - Resignation from membership and termination of eligibility 

(3) A member may resign from the Union by written notice addressed to and delivered to the 
Secretary of the Branch to which the member is attached. 

( 4) A notice of resignation from membership takes effect:-
( a) where the member ceases to be eligible to become a member of the Union-

(0 on the day on which the notice is received at the office of the relevant Branch 
Secretary; or 

(i0 on the day specified in the notice, which is a day not earlier than the day when the 
member ceases to be eligible to become a member; which is later; or 

(b) in any other case-
(i) at the end of 2 weeks after the notice is received at the office of the relevant Branch 

Secretary; or 
(il) on the day specified in the notice; whichever is later. 

(5) Any subscriptions, levies or fines which are due and payable but have not been paid by a 
former member in relation to a period before the member's resignation took effect, may be 
sued for and recovered in the name of the Union, in a court of competent jurisdiction, as a 
debt due to the Union. 

( 6) A notice delivered to the relevant Branch Secretary shall be taken to have been received bythe 
Union when it was delivered. 

(7) A notice of resignation that has been received at the office of the relevant Branch Secretary is 
not invalid because it was not addressed and delivered in accordance with sub-rule (1). 

(8) A resignation from membership is valid even if it is not effected in accordance with this 
section if the member is informed in writing by or on behalf of the Union that the resignation 
has been accepted. 

(9) A relevant Branch Secretary may accept a resignation from membership which is not effected 
in accordance with this Rule. 

(10) Where the relevant Branch Secretary accepts a resignation in accordance with the previous 
sub-rule the relevant Branch Secretary shall inform the member in writing that his/her 
resignation has been accepted. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANQ-I) 

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMENT 
FOR THE FINANQAL YEARENDED31DECEMBER2009 

Rights of members to resign ( cont) 

(11) On receipt of a written notice from a member that he/ she has become ineligible for 
membership of the Union or a notice of resignation or on acceptance of a resignation which is 
not effected in accordance with this Rule, the Branch Secretary shall, as soon as possible 
notify the Federal Secretary that the member has become ineligible for membership orthat the 
member has resigned." 

On 13th March 2010 the Committee of Management of Australian Education Union (New South 
Wales Branch) passed the following resolution in relation to the general purpose financial report 
(GPFR) of the Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch) for the financial year ended 
31 December 2009: 

'Ib.e Committee of Management declares in relation to the GPFR that in its opinion: 

(a) the financial statements and notes comply with Australian Accounting Standards; 

(b) the financial statements and notes comply with the reporting guidelines; 

(c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial performance, 
financial position and cash flows for the financial year to which they relate; 

(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the entity will be able to pay its debts as and 
when they become due and payable; 

(e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year: 

(~ meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with the rules of 
the organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and 

(il) the financial affairs have been managed in accordance with the rules of the 
organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and 

(ii~ the financial records have been kept and maintained in accordance with the 
registration and accountability of organisations (RAO) Schedule and the RAO 
Regulations; and 

(iv) where the organisation consists of 2 or more entities, the financial records of 
rep01ting unit have been kept, as far as practicable, in a consistent manner to each of 
the other reporting units of the organisation; and 

(v) the infonnation sought in any request of a member or a Registrar duly made under 
section 272 of the RAO Schedule has been furnished to the member of Registrar; 
and 

(v~ there has been compliance with any order for inspection of financial records made 
by the Commission under section 273 of the RAO Schedule. 

(vil) the organisation has not undertaken any recovery of wages activityforthe financial 
year. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMENT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEARENDED31DECEMBER2009 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the O>rnmittee of Management: 

Name of officer: John liVing 

Title of Office held: Branch Secreta!)' 

Signature: 
' 
Dated this 13th Day of March 2010 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATE ME NT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

Note 2009 
$ 

Revenues 
Grants 2,000 
Interest received 182 
Agency collections 2,281,920 

Total revenues 2,284,102 

Expenses 
Audit of financial report 5 3,000 
Capitation fees paid to Federal Office 2,281,920 

Total WRA Regulations disclosures 2,284,920 

Travel costs 
Finance costs 69 

Total expenses 2,284,989 

Loss for the year (887) 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income (887) 

2008 
$ 

555 
2,368,743 

2,369,298 

2,050 
2,368,743 

2,370,793 

70 

2,370,863 

( 1,565) 

11,565) 

The Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
ASAT 31DECEMBER2009 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Trade and other receivables 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Trade and other payables 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

EQUITY 
Retained earnings 

TOTAL EQUITY 

2009 
$ 

3,430 
11 

3,441 

3,441 

3,000 

___ _],000 

3,000 

441 

441 

441 

The Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

2008 
$ 

3,050 
425,i~ 

428,517 

428,517 

427,189 

427,189 

427,189 

1,328 

1,328 

1,328 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATE ME NT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEARENDED31DECEMBER2009 

Retained 
Earnings 

$ 

Balance at 31 December 2007 2,893 

Total comprehensive income for 2008 (1,565) 

Balance at 31 December 2008 1,328 

Total comprehensive income for 2009 (887) 

Balance at 31 December 2009 441 

TOTAL 

$ 

2,893 

(1,565) 

1,328 

(887) 

441 

The Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

Note 2009 2008 
$ 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Grants received 2,000 
Agency Collections 2,281,920 1,944,053 
Interest received 171 550 
Payments in the course of operations (2,283,711) (1,944,122) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 6 (a) 380 481 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES 

Net increase in cash held 380 481 

Cash at beginning of year 3,050 2,569 

Cash at end of the year 6 (b) 3,430 3,050 

The Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Preparation 

The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards, including Australian Accounting Interpretations and other 
authorative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board as well as the 
requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. Compliance with Australian 
Accounting Standards ensures that the financials statements and notes also complywith International 
Financial Reporting Standards. 

The financial report is prepared on an accrual basis and is based on historical costs and does not take 
into account changing money values, or except where stated, the current value of non-monetary 
assets. 

The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated. 

(a) Income Tax 

No provision for income tax is necessary as the Australian Education Union (New South Wales 
Branch) is exempt from tax under Sec 23(f) for the Income Tax Assessment Act. 

(b) Revenue 

Grant revenue is recognised in the period in which it is received. 

Agency revenue is recognised for the financial year to which it relates. Agency revenue received in 
advance is recognised as a liability at balance date. 

Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates applicable 
to those assets. 

(c) Financial Risk management objectives and policies 

The entity's principal financial instrument comprises receivables, payables and bank loans, cash and 
short term deposits. The entity manages credit risk in relation to trade receivables by undertaking 
transactions with organisations with good credit ratings. 
The entity does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single debtor or group of 
debtors under financial instruments entered into by it. 

The consolidated entity manages its exposure to key financial risks including interest rate risk, credit 
risk and liquidity risk The consolidated entity uses different methods of measure and manages 
different types of risk to which it is exposed. These include monitoring levels of exposure to interest 
rate and assessments of market forecasts for interest rate prices. 

(d) Risk Exposure and Responses 

Interest rate risk 
'Ibe entity's exposure to market interest rates is minimal. The level of debt is disclosed in Note 7. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

NOTE 1: STATE ME NT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT) 

(e) New accounting standards and interpretations 

There have been new Australian Accounting Standards and Intetpretations issued/ or amended that 
are applicable to the Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch) but not yet effective. 
TI1ey have been considered and it is believed that they have no material impact on the presentation 
on the financial report. 

NOTE 2: CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS 

No Capital Expenditure contracted for. 

NOTE 3: RELATED PARTY INFORMATION 

(a) Executive Officers 

The Chief Executive Officer (Branch Secretary) during the year was John Irving. 

Persons holding positions as executive (committee of management) members 
during the year were: 

Gary Zadkovich 
Nola Edsall 
John Dixon 
Garry Grant 
Brenda Seymour 
Peter Wilson 
Phil Bradley 

Frank Barnes 
Kathy Deacon 
Robert Lipscombe 
Sue Sinlpson 
Deborah Marten 
Linda Sinlon 
Debbie Westacott 

Jenny Diamond 
Geoff Turnbull 
Maurie Mullieron 
Sally Edsall 
Maree O'Halloran 
Fionie Stavert 
David Wynne 

No remuneration was received by Officers or Executive members during the year. 

(b) Related parry transactions 

AgencyOlllection fees paid to the Australian Education Union during 2009 was $2,281,920 (2008: 
$2,368,743). AgencyOlllection fees were received from the New South Wales Teachers Federation 
for the same amount. 

NOTE 4: NOTICE REQUIRED UNDER THE FAIR WORK (REGISTERED 
ORGANISATIONS) ACT 2009 

In accordance with the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, the 
attention of members is drawn to the following provisions of the Act:-

S.272 

(1) A member of the reporting unit, or a Registrar, may apply to the reporting unit for 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

NOTE 4: NOTICE REQUIRED UNDER THE FAIR WORK (REGISTERED 
ORGANISATIONS) ACT 2009(CONT) 

specified prescribed information in relation to the reporting unit to be made available to 
the person making the application. 

(2) 'The application must be in writing and must specify the period with which, and the 
manner in which, the information is to be made available. The period must not be less 
than 14 days afterthe application is given to the reporting unit. 

(3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1). 

NOTE 5: AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION 

Audit of financial report 

NOTE 6: CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

(a) Reconciliation of net cash inflow from 
opemting activities to opemting sutplus: 

Operating (deficit) 
Changes in assets and liabilities during the financial 
year: 

Decrease/ (increase) in debtors 
(Increase)/ decrease in creditors 

Net cash flows from opeming activities 

(b) Reconciliation of Cash: 

Cash at the end of the financial year is reconciled to 
items in the statement of financial position as follows: 

Cash at bank 

2009 
$ 

3,000 

(887) 

425,456 
(424,189) 

380 

3,430 

11 

2008 
$ 

2,500 

(1,565) 

(424,693) 
426,739 

481 

3,050 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

NOTE 7: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The Branch does not participate in the use of derivative financial instruments. 

(a) Credit Risk 

The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or any other security, at 
balance date to recognise financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any provision for doubtful 
debts, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements. 

The Branch does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single debtor or group of debtors 
under financial instruments entered into by the Branch. 

(b) Net Fair Values 

The net fair values of debtors, loans and other amounts are detennined by discounting the cash 
flows, at the market interest rates of similar securities, to their present values. 

The carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities does not exceed their net fair value. 

(c) Interest Rate Risk 

The Branch exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that a financial instrument's value will 
fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates is minimal as all financial assets and liabilities 
are non-interest bearing. 

(d) Sensitivity Analysis 

The Branch has no exposure to interest rate risk 

NOTE 8: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly 
affected or maysignificantlyaffect the operations of the union, the results of those operations, orthe 
state of affairs of the union in future financial years. 

NOTE 9: ORGANISATION DETAILS 

The registered office and principal place of business of the Australian Education Union (New South 
Wales Branch) is 23-33 Mary Street Suny Hills. 
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Grant Thornton 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd 
ACN 130 913 594 

Level17, 383 Kent Street 
Sydney NSW 2000 
PO Locked Bag 0800 
QVB Post Office 
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Sydney NSW 1230 

T +61 2 8297 2400 
F +61 2 9299 4445 
E info.nsw@grantthornton.com.au 
W www.grantthornton.com.au 

To the Members of Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch) 

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Australian Education Union (New 
South Wales Branch) which comprises the statement of fmancial position as at 31 

December 2009, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in 
equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant 
accounting policies and o ther explanatory notes to the fmancial statements and the 

statement by the Committee of Management of Australian E ducation Union (New South 
Wales Branch). 

Responsibility of the Committee of Management for the financial report 

The Committee of Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 

the fmancial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the 

Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 
2009. Tlus responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to 

the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material 

misstatement, whether clue to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting 
policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. In Note 

1 the Committee of Management also states, in accordance with Accounting Standard 

A.ASB 101: Presentation of Financial Statements, that compliance with the Australian 

equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards ensures that the financial report, 

comprising the financial statements and notes, complies with International Financial 
Reporting Standards. 

Auditor's responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, which require us to 

comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial report is free of 
material misstatement. 

Gtanl Thornton Auslralialimtod is a momb« r• mv.ill*l Gtanl Thornton lnlemalional Lid Gtanl Thornton International Lid and lhe momb«lirrns •• nota v.OOdwide partne<shp Gtant ThomtonAustralia Lmlod. together 
v.ilh Hs subsidiaries and related enlllies. """''"' ilsseMc:esindependenlly in Australia. 

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation 
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 

judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the fmancial 

report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 

considers internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the fmancial 

report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. An audit 

also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Committee o f Management, as well as 

evaluating the overall presentation of the fmancial report. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficien t and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our audit opinion. 

Independence 
In conducting our audit, we have complied with the applicable independence requirements 

of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board. 

Auditor's opinion 
In our opinion: 

a satisfactory accounting records were kept by the Branch in respect of the year ended 31 
December 2009, including: 

records of the sources and nature of the income o f the Branch (including income 
from members); and 

u records of the nature and purposes of expenditure of the Branch; and 

b the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with the 
requirements imposed by Section 265 of the RO Act and reg. 161 o f the Fair Work 
(Registered O rganisation) Regulations 2009 (RO regulations) and applicable Australian 
Accounting Standards including the A ustralian Accounting Interpretations, the financial 
position of the Branch as at 31 December 2009, and of its performance and its cash 
flows for the year then ended. 

c the financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as 

disclosed in Note 1. 

We have obtained all the infonnation and explanations we required from the officers and 
employees of the Branch, which were necessa1y for the purposes of our audit, and there were 
no deficiencies, failures or shortcomings in relation to the matters referred to above. 

~ ~\-~ -AJ-.:t ~::0 ~~ 
G RANT THORNTON AUDIT PTY LTD 
Chartered Accountants 

~ 
Director - Audit & Assurance Services 

Sydney, 13 March 2010 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION (NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH): 

These accounts are a summary of the activities of the New South Wales Branch of the federal union, the 
Australian Education Union. 

The 2009 year was one in which very little activity occurred and the financial activity was mostly limited to 
the receipt of funds collected on behalf of the Federal branch of the union by the New South Wales 
Teachers Federation. These funds were received and then transferred to the federal body. 

~~ 
JOHN IRVING 
BRANCH SECRETARY 

AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

SUMMARY OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENbED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

The financial statements of the Union have been audited in accordance with the provisions of the Fair 
Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 and the following summary is provided for members in 
accordance with Section 279(2) of the Act. 

A copy of the Auditors' Repon, Accounts and Statements will be supplied free of charge to members who 
request same. 

Cenificates required to be given under the Act by the Accounting Officer and the Committee of 
Management have been completed in accordance with the provisions of the Act and contain no 
qualifications. The financial statements, specific disclosures and other information included in the concise 
financial repon are derived from, and are consistent with, the full financial repon of Australian Education 
Union (New South Wales Branch). 

In accordance with the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, the attention of 
members is drawn to the provisions of Section 274 (1) and (2) and (3), which read as follows: 

(1) A member of an organisation, or a Registrar, may apply to the organisation for specified prescribed 
information in relation to the organisation. 

(2) An organisation shall, on application made under subsection (1) by a member of the organisation or 
a Registrar, make the specified information available to the member or Registrar in such a manner, 
and within such time, as prescribed. 

(3) A Registrar may only make an application under subsection (1) at the request of 
a member of the organisation concerned, and the Registrar shall provide to a member information 
received because of an application made at the request of the member. 
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Discussion and Analysis of the Financial Statements 

Information on Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch) Financial Report 

The financial statements and disclosures in the concise financial report have been derived from the 31 
December 2009 financial report of Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch). 

The discussion and analysis is provided to assist members in understanding the concise financial report. The 
discussion and analysis is based on Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch) financial 
statements and the information contained in the concise financial report has been derived from the full 
2009 Financial Report of Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch). 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 

Loss forthe year of $887 was down $678 from the prior year (2008: loss of $1,565), largely due to receipt of 
$2,000 as grants from NSW Teachers Federation. 

Agency collections income of $2,281,920 decreased 3.7% from the prior year (2008: $2,368,743) due to 
reduced activity on a federal level. 

Statement of Financial Position 

Total assets decreased by $425,076 from $428,517 in 2008 to $3,441 in 2009, representing an decrease of 
99%. Tills decrease was mainly attributable to a decrease in trade and other payables for the same amount. 

Total liabilities have decreased by $424,189 from $427,189 in 2008 to $3,000 in 2009 due to a decrease in 
trade and other receivables for the same amount. 

Equity has decreased by67% from $1,328 in 2008 to $441 in 2009. This was due to the net loss for the year 
decreasing retained earnings by $887. 

Cash Flow Statement 

Cash has increased by $380 from $3,050 in 2008 to $3,430 in 2009 representing an increase of 12%. The net 
cash inflow from operating activities has decreased by $101 from $481 in 2008 to $380 in 2009 due to 
increased payments in the course of operations. 
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CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Trade and other receivables 

AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
ASAT 31DECEMBER2009 

2009 
$ 

3,430 
11 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 3,441 

TOTAL ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Trade and other payables 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

EQUITY 

Retained earnings 

TOTAL EQUITY 

3,441 

3,000 

3,000 

3,000 

441 

441 

441 
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2008 
$ 

3,050 
425,467 

428,517 

428,517 

427,189 

427,189 

427,189 

1,328 

1,328 

1,328 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

2009 

$ 

Revenues 

Grants 2,000 
Interest received 182 
Agency collections 2,281,920 

Total revenues 2,284,102 

Expenses 

Audit of financial repon 3,000 
Capitation fees paid to Federal Office 2,281,920 

Total "WRA Regulations disclosures 2,284,920 

Travel costs 
Finance costs 69 

2,284,989 
Total expenses 

Loss for the year (887) 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income (887) 
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2008 

$ 

555 
2,368,743 

2,369,298 

2,050 
2,368,743 

2,370,793 

70 

2,370,863 

(1,565) 

( 1,565) 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

Balance at 31 December 2007 

Total comprehensive income for 2008 

Balance at 31 December 2008 

Total comprehensive income for 2009 

Balance at 31 December 2009 
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Retained 
Earnings 

$ 

2,893 

(1,565) 

1,328 

(887) 

441 

TOTAL 

$ 

2,893 

(1,565) 

1,328 

(887) 

441 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

2009 2008 

$ $ 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Grants received 2,000 
Agency Collections 2,281,920 1,944,053 
Interest received 171 550 
Payments in the course of operations (2,283,711) (1,944,122) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 380 481 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANONG 
ACTIVITIES 

Net increase in cash held 380 481 

Cash at beginning of year 3,050 2,569 

Cash at end of the year 3,430 3,050 
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Grant Thornton 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd 
ABN 25 034 787 757 

Level17, 383 Kent Street 
Sydney NSW 2000 
PO Locked Bag Q800 
QVB Post Office 
Sydney NSW 1230 

T +61 2 8297 2400 
F +61 2 9299 4445 
E info.nsw@grantthornton.com.au 
W www.grantthornton.com.au 

To the Members of the Australian Education Union (New South Wales 
Branch) 

\Ve have audited the accompanying concise financial report of Australia Education Union 

(New South \Vales Branch), comprising the statement of fmancial position as at 31 

December 2009, and the statement of comprehensive income and statement of cash flows 

for, and related notes, which was derived from the financial report of Australian Education 

Union (New South Wales Branch) for the year ended 31 D ecember 2009. We expressed an 

unmodified auditor's opinion on that financial report in our auditor's report dated 13 March 
2010. 

Responsibility of the Committee of Management for the financial 
statements 
The Committee of Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 

the summarised financial statements. 

Auditor's responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the concise financial report based on our 
procedures, which were conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These 
Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to 
audit engagements. 

Independence 
In conducting our audit, we have complied with the applicable independence requirements 

of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board. 

Grant Thomton Aus~a!ia Limited is a roomber firm Yoilhin Grant Thornton International ltd. Grant Thornton International ltd and the roomber firms are not a WOIIdwide partnership. Grant Thornton Aus~alia Limited. together 
with its subsidiaries Md related entities, delivers its services independendy in Australia. 

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation 
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.. 
Grant Thornton 

Auditor's opinion 
In our opinion, the information reported in the concise fmancial report is consistent, in all 
material respects, with the financial report from which it was derived and complies with the 
Accounting Standard AASB 101: Presentation of Financial Statements. For a better 
understanding of the fmancial position of Australian Education Union (New South Wales 
Branch) as at 31 December 2009, its fmancial performance for the year ended and the scope 
of our audit, the concise financial report should be read in conjunction with the unabridged 
financial report and the auditor's report thereon. 

~-+ "1'---\:--. ~~\:- ~ \_~ 
GRANT THORNTON AUDIT P1~D 
Chartered Accountants 

M A Adam-Smith 
Director - Audit & Assurance Services 

Sydney, 13 March 2010 
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2 July 2010 

Mr John Irving 
Secretary 
Australian Education Union, New South Wales Branch 
22-23 Mary Street 
Surry Hills NSW 2010 
By email: jirving@nswtf.org.au 
 
cc: Steve Ruzic 
Australian Education Union, NSW Branch 
22-23 Mary Street 
Surry Hills NSW 2010 
By email: sruzic@nswtf.org.au 
 
cc:  M A Adam-Smith 
Director, Audit & Assurance Services 
Grant Thornton 
PO Locked Bag Q800 
QVB Post Office 
Sydney NSW 1230 
By email: info.nsw@grantthornton.com.au  

Financial report for the AEU NSW Branch for the year ended 31 December 2009 
(FR2010/10301) 

Dear Mr Irving 

I acknowledge receipt of the financial report of the New South Wales Branch of the Australian 
Education Union for the year ended 31 December 2009. The documents were lodged with Fair 
Work Australia on 8 June 2010. 

The financial report has not been filed as a number of matters, the details of which are set out 
below, need to be attended to before the report can be filed. 

1. Full report: Audit Opinion 
Section 257(5) of the RO Act requires an auditor to state whether the general purpose financial 
report is presented fairly in accordance the requirements imposed by Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the 
Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act). However the audit opinion is limited 
to section 265 of the RO Act and regulation 161. In order to satisfy legislative requirements the 
Branch is required to obtain an audit opinion as to whether the general purpose financial report is 
presented fairly in accordance with all the requirements of Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the RO Act.  

2. Concise report: Required statements and documents 
Section 265 of the (the RO Act) and regulation 161 requires a concise report to contain certain 
documents and statements. The Operating Report and the Committee of Management Statement 
have been omitted from the concise report. 

 11 Exhibition Street Telephone: (03) 8661 7777 
Melbourne VIC 3000 
GPO Box 1994 
Melbourne VIC 3001 

International: (613) 8661 7777 
Facsimile: (03) 9655 0401 
Email: melbourne@fwa.gov.au 

 

mailto:jirving@nswtf.org.au
mailto:sruzic@nswtf.org.au
mailto:info.nsw@grantthornton.com.au
http://www.fwa.gov.au/documents/legislation/fw_orgs_reg_act/fw_reorgs_act.htm#P3227_340711
http://www.fwa.gov.au/documents/legislation/fw_orgs_reg_act/fw_reorgs_act.htm#P3327_352340
http://www.fwa.gov.au/documents/legislation/fw_org_regs_con/fw_orgs_regs_con.htm#P1613_147150


In order to ensure legislative requirements are satisfied please provide the concise report to 
members again, ensuring that the Operating Report and Committee of Management Statement 
are included. 

3. Agency collections 
Note 3(b) explains that agency collection fees were received from the NSW Teachers Federation 
(NSWTF). The branch’s ability to continue as a going concern appears to be dependent on the 
NSWTF’s capacity and willingness to continue to forward agency fees to the branch. The notes 
to the financial statements should explain why the branch can reasonably expect that this will 
continue to occur in future financial years. For example, if an agreement exists between the 
NSWTF and the NSW Branch of the AEU that the NSWTF pays an approved amount to the 
Branch for each member of the NSWTF (as enabled by rule 11(7) of the AEU rules), then the 
notes to the financial statements should state this. 

The branch’s ability to continue as a going concern also appears to be dependent on the receipt 
of a grant from the NSWTF. The notes to the financial statements should explain why the branch 
can reasonably expect this will continue to occur in future financial years.  

The Branch is requested therefore to provide in writing an explanation as to why it can 
reasonably expect that the NSWTF will continue to forward agency fees and grants to the 
Branch. 

Summary 
Accordingly, in order to secure compliance with your obligations under the RO Act, the branch is 
required to:  

• obtain an audit opinion as to whether the general purpose financial report is presented fairly in 
accordance with all the requirements of Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the RO Act; 

• provide the concise report to members again, ensuring that the Operating Report and 
Committee of Management Statement are included; and 

• provide in writing an explanation as to why it can reasonably expect that the NSWTF will 
continue to forward agency fees and grants to the Branch. 

If you have any queries I can be contacted on 03 8661 7929 and via email on 
eve.anderson@fwa.gov.au. I have also provided your auditor with a copy of this letter. 
 

Yours sincerely 

 
Eve Anderson 
Tribunal Services and Organisations 
Fair Work Australia 
Tel: 03 86617929 

Email: eve.anderson@fwa.gov.au 
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~~~\letuJ~ 
Australian Education Union 
New South Wales Branch 

if!V~ 

Federal Office: 120 Clarendon Street, South Melbourne VIC 3205 
NSW Branch Office: 23-33 Mary Street, Surry Hills NSW 2010 

29 September 2010 

Ms Eve Anderson 
Tribunal Services and Organisations 
Fair Work Australia 
GPO Box 1994 
MELBOURNE VIC 3001 

Dear Ms Anderson 

In reply please quote:·1226/201 0/JD:jw 

Re: Financial Report for the AEU NSW Branch for the year ended 31 December 2009 
(FR201 0/10301) 

I am responding in relation to the letter you sent to the AEU NSW Branch on 2nd July 2010 and the 
subsequent discussions that you had with Ms Susan Hopgood, Federal Secretary of the AEU in 
relation to the deficiencies sighted in our financial report for the year ending 31 December 2009. 

We have addressed the issues as follows: 

• We have an audit report dated 14 August 2010 that shows the general purpose financial report 
is presented fairly in accordance with all the requirements of Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the RO Act. 

• We have provided a concise report to members again and we have ensured that the Operating 
Report and Committee of Management Statement was included in such reporting. This was 
provided in the journal, "Education" which was sent to every financial member of the AEU NSW 
Branch on 30 August 2010 (see attachment). This followed presentation to the Branch 
Committee of Management on 14 August 2010. 

• We have written confirmation from the NSW Teachers Federation, the Associated Body, 
indicating it will continue to forward agency fees and grants to the Branch to allow the AEU 
NSW Branch to operate as a going concern. There are two clauses to this effect in the full 
Financial Report. Please find attached the letter from the NSW Teachers Federation's Acting 
General Secretary, Wendy Currie, to the AEU NSW Branch, to this effect. 

• The full report was presented to the Branch Council meeting of 21 September 2010. 

I have also included the documents necessary for lodgement under section 268 of the Fair Work 
(Registered Organisation) Act 2009, namely: 

a) Certificate of Secretary. 

b) A copy of the Concise Report. 

. . ./2 



c) Certified copy of the financial report for the year ending 31 December 2009 including auditors' 
report. 

We are happy to also provide any of the attachments as electronic documents. 

If you have any further inquiries please contact me on (02) 9217 2346 (direct) or email 
dixon@nswtf.org.au 

John Dixon 
Acting Branch Secretary 

Enc/s: 5 
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Australian Education Union 
New South Wales Branch 
Federal Office: 120 Clarendon Street, South Melbourne VIC 3205 
NSW Branch Office: 23-33 Mary Street, Surry Hills NSW 2010 

Certificate of Secretary 
s268 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 

I, John Dixon, being the Acting Branch Secretary of the Australian Education Union (New South 
Wales Branch), certify: 

that the documents lodged herewith are copies of the full report and concise report referred 
to in s268 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009; and 

that the concise report was presented to the Committee of Management on 14 August 2010 
and provided to all members on 30 August 201 0; 

that the full report was presented to a meeting of the Branch Council of the Australian 
Education Union (New South Wales Branch) on 21 September 2010 in accordance with 
section 266 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

For and on behalf of the Australian Education Union (NSW Branch) 

Dixon 
Acting Branch Secretary 

Date: 29 September 2010 



NSW TEACHERS FEDERATION 
TEACHERS FEDERATION HOUSE Locked Bag 3010 Oarlinghurst NSW 1300 

11 August 2010 

The Committee of Management 
Australian Education Union 
NSW Branch Executive 

Dear Colleagues 

Please address all correspondence to 
THE GENERAL SECRETARY 

In reply please quote: 201 0/JD/jw 

I write in relation to the Australian Education Union NSW Branch auditors' fees and bank fees for 
the management of AEU membership fees and audited accounts. These costs are outlined in the 
NSW Branch Accounts and Financial Statements 2009. 

In the past the NSW Teachers Federation has, on occasion, provided financial assistance to the 
Branch to cover such auditors' fees and bank account fees where required. 

The NSW Teachers Federation will provide similar financial support in respect of these items and 
when they fall due for a period of twelve months from the date of this letter. 

I also undertake to inform you immediately in the event that circumstances change in such a 
manner that the NSW Teachers Federation is unable to continue to provide such financial support. 

Yours sincerely 

Wendy Currie 
Acting General Secretary 

23 33 Mary Street Surry Hills NSW 20 I 0 aurPubllcSchooJs 

Telephone: (02) 9217 2100. 1300 654 369 (8.30am- 5.00pm) ~ 
Facsimile: (02) 9217 2470 AStroriQFoundation 

http:jjwww.nswtf.org.au andasureFuture 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION (NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH): 

These accounts are a concise view of the activities of the New South Wales Branch of the federal 
union, the Australian Education Union. 

The 2009 year was one in which very little activity occurred and the financial activity was mostly 
limited to the receipt of funds collected on behalf of the Federal branch of the union by the New 
South Wales Teach Federation. These funds were received and then transferred to the federal 
body. 

msenname] 
ACfiNG BRANCH SECRETARY 

A11STR:m:IAN EDUCATIONlJNION 
(NEWSOUTHWALESBRANCH) 

SUMMARY OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

The financial statements of the Union have been audited in accordance with the provisions of the 
Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 and the following summary is provided for members 
in accordance with Section 279(2) of the Act. 

A copy of the Auditors' Report, Accounts and Statements will be supplied free of charge to members 
who request same. 

Certificates required to be given under the Act by the Accounting Officer and the Committee of 
Management have been completed in accordance with the provisions of the Act and contain no 
qualifications. The financial statements, specific disclosures and other infonnation included in the 
concise financial report are derived from, and are consistent with, the full financial report of 
Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch). 

In accordance with the requirements of the1Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, the 
attention of members is drawn to the provisions of Section 274 (1) and (2) and (3), which read as 
follows: 

(1) A member of an organisation, or a Registrar, may apply to the organisation for specified 
prescribed information in relation to the organisation. 

(2) An organisation shall, on application made under subsection (1) by a member of the 
organisation or a Registrar, make the specified information available to the member or 
Registrar in such a manner, and within such time, as prescribed. 

(3) A Registrar may only make an application under subsection (1) at the request of 
a member of the organisation concerned, and the Registrar shall provide to a member 
information received because of an application made at the request of the member. 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERA-l'ING REPGRT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

Your committee present the repon on the union for the financial year ended 31 December 2009. 

Members of Committee 

The name of the members of committee of management in office at any time during or since the end 
of the financial year is : 

Gaty Zadkovich Brenda Seymour Sui-Linn White 
Nola Edsall Pamela Gregg Geoff Turnbull 

===::____::_:======='JfAoo~.nR=1'Hnv1iuffl'ng~=====R.0\}en Lip;srenme=====~rufie=Nlffifuer-en ·· ~ ~ ~-.~. 

Garty Grant Sue Simpson Peter Wilson 
John Dixon Deborah Manen Maree OHalloran 
Phil Bradley Linda Simon Khyiah Angel 
Michael De Wall Frank Barnes Rod Brown 
Nicole Calnan WendyGrrrie Peter de Graff 
Kathy Deacon Jenny Diamond Sally Edsall 
David Ferguson Janet Hannaford Joan Lemaire 
Dennis Long dJ.armaine O'Sheades Fionie Staven 
Debbie Westacott David Wynne 

The members of committee of management have been in office since the stan of the financial year to 
the date of this repon unless otherwise stated. 

Operating Results 
The loss of the union for the financial year was $887 (2008: loss of $1,565). 

Review of Operations 
A review of the operations of the union during the financial year and the results of those operations 
found that during the year, the entity continued to engage in its principal activity, the results of which 
are disclosed in the attached financial statements. 

Significant Changes in State of Affairs 
No significant changes in the state of affairs of the union occurred during the financial year. 

Principal Activity 
The principal activity of the entity during the financial year was promotion of union activities within 
the education sector. No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the year. 

After Balance Date Events 
No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly 
affected or may significantly affect the operations of the union, the results of those operations, or the 
state of affairs of the union in future financial years. 

Employees/Members 
The union did not have any employees during the year. The number of financial members at 31 
December2009 was 62,419 (2008: 62,403) 



Supernnnuation Trustees 
No officer or member of the organisation holds a posmon as a trustee or director of a 
superannuation entity or exempt public sector superannuation scheme where the criterion 
for holding such position is that they are an officer or member of an organisation. 

Rights of members to resign 

Members may resign from the union in accordance with rule 17, which reads as follows: 
"17- Resignation from membership and termination of eligibility 

(3) A member may resign from the Union by written notice addressed to and delivered to the 
Secretary of the Brnnch to which the member is attached. 

(4) A nouce of resignation from melllbership takes effect:-
( a) where the member ceases to be eligible to become a member of the Union-

(i) on the day on which the notice is received at the office of the relevant Brnnch 
Secretary; or 

(ii) on the day specified in the notice, which is a day not earlier than the day when the 
member ceases to be eligible to become a member; which is later; or 

(b) in any other case ~ 
(~ at the end of 2 weeks after the notice is received at the office of the relevant Brnnch 

Secretary; or 
(n) on the day specified in the notice; whichever is later. 

(5) Any subscriptions, levies or fines which are due and payable but have not been paid by a 
fonner member in relation to a period before the member's resignation took effect, may be 
sued for and recovered in the name of the Union, in a court of competent jurisdiction, as a 
debt due to the Union. 

(6) A notice delivered to the relevant Brnnch Secretary shall be taken to have been received by the 
Union when it was delivered 

(7) A notice of resignation that has been received at the office of the relevant Brnnch Secretary is 
not invalid because it was not addressed and delivered in accordance with sub-rule (1). 

(8) A resignation from membership is valid even if it is not effected in accordance with this section 
if the member is informed in writing by or on behalf of the Union that the resignation has been 
accepted. 

(9) A relevant Brnnch Secretary may accept a resignation from membership which is not effected 
in accordance with this Rule. 

(10) Where the relevant Brnnch Secretary accepts a resignation in accordance with the previous sub­
rule the relevant Brnnch Secretary shall inform the member in writing that his/her resignation 
has been accepted. 



Rights of members to resign (cont.) 

{11) On receipt of a written notice from a member that he/ she has become ineligible for 
membership of the Union or a notice of resignation or on acceptance of a resignation which is 
not effected in accordance with this Rule, the Branch Secretatyshall, as soon as possible notify 
the Federal Secretaty that the member has become ineligible for membership or that the 
member has resigned." 

On 14 August 2010 the Committee of Management of Australian Education Union (New South 
Wales Branch) passed the following resolution in relation to the general purpose financial repon 
{ GPFR) of the Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch) for the financial year ended 
31 December2009: 

The Committee of Management declares in relation to the GPFR that in its opinion: 

(a) the financial statements and notes comply with Australian Accounting Standards; 

(b) the financial statements and notes complywith the reponing guidelines; 

(c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial performance, 
financial position and cash flows for the financial year to which they relate; 

(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the entity will be able to pay its debts as and 
when they become due and payable; 

(e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year: 

(~ meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with the rules of 
the organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and 

(n) the financial affairs have been managed in accordance with the rules of the 
organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and 

(ill) the financial records have been kept and maintained in accordance with the 
registration and accountability of organisations (RAO) Schedule and the RAO 
Regulations; and 

(iv) where the organisation consists of 2 or more entities, the financial records of 
reporting unit have been kept, as far as practicable, in a consistent manner to each of 
the other reponing units of the organisation; and 

(v) the information sought in any request of a member or a Registrar duly made under 
section 272 of the RAO Schedule has been furnished to the member of Registrar; 
and 

(V1) there has been compliance with any order for inspection of financial records made by 
the Commission under section 273 of the RAO Schedule. 

(vli) the organisation has not undenaken any recoveJY of wages activity for the financial 
year. 



Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Committee of Management: 

Name of officer: .To ~v--J Dl y._or-J 
Tide of Office held: A · Secretary 

Signature: 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH} 

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

In accordance with Section 253(2){c) of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, the Committee 
of Management of the Australian Education Union{ New South Wales Branch) passed the following 
resolution, in relation to the financial report of the reporting unit for the financial year ended 31 December 
2009: 

The Committee of Management declares in relation to the financial report that in its opinion: 

(a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards; 

(b) the financial statements and notes comply with the reporting guidelines of the General Manager of 
Fair Work Australia; 

(c) the financial statements ana neres:give-a=mie-andiair view=fef:the=Hnanciatpetforrnanrelinanciat-· - -
position and cash flows of he reporting unit for the financial year to which they relate; 

(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe the reporting unit wit be able to pay its debts as and when 
they become due and payable; 

(e) during the financial year to which the financial report relates and since the end of the year: 

{~ meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with the rules of the 
organisation including the rules of a branch concerned: and 

(u) the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance with the rules of 
the organisation including the rules of the branch concerned; and 

(~ the financial records of the reporting unit have·been kept and maintained in accordance 
with the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 and the Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) regulations 2009; and 

(iv) no requests have been made by a member or a Registrar under section 272 of the Fair Work 
(Registered Organisations) Act 2009; and 

(v) no orders have been made by the Commission under section 273 of the Fair Work 
(Registered Organisations) Act 2009 during the period. 

(f) In relation to the recovery- of wages activity: 
(i) There has been no such activity undertaken by the reporting unit. 

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee of Management dated 14 August 
2010. 
Zl'O~N })J>(av-) 

Acting B cretaty 

Discussion and Analysis of the Financial Statements 



Infonnation on Australian Education Union (New South Wales Branch) Financial Report 

The financial statements and disclosures in the concise financial report have been derived from the 31 
Decemher2009 financial report of Australian Education Union {New South Wales Branch). 

The discussion and analysis is-provided to assist members-in understanding the concise financial report. The 
discussion and analysis is based on Australian Education Union {New South Wales Branch) financial 
statements and the infonnation contained in the concise financial report has been derived from the full 
2009 Financial Report of Australian Education Union {New South Wales Branch). 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 

Loss for the year of $887 was down $678 from the prior year {2008: loss of $1,565}, l~ely due to receipt of 
$2,000 as grants fromNSWTeachers Federation. 

--Membe--rship-feekleeme----ftf--tbe---AFH---of=$z,ZM,--920::decreased----3;-:a'cdrom::the-priur=year-(2008~~~<1j)= 
due to reduced activity on a federal level 

Statement of Financial Position 

Total assets decreased by$425,076 from $428,517 in 2008 to $3,441 in 2009, representing an decrease of 
99%. This decrease was mainly attributable to a decrease in trade and other payables for the same amount. 

Total liabilities have decreased by $424,189 from $427,189 in 2008 to $3,000 in 2009 due to a decrease in 
trade and other receivables for the same amount. 

Equity has decreased by 67% from $1,328 in 2008 to $441 in 2009. This was due to the net loss for the year 
decreasing retained earnings by$887. 

Cash Flow Statement 

Cash has increased by$380 from $3,050 in 2008 to $3,430 in 2009 representing an increase of 12%. The net 
cash inflow from operating activities has decreased by$101 from $481 in 2008 to $380 in 2009 due to 
increased payments in the course of operations. 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEWSOUfH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 DECEMBER2009 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Trade and other receivables 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Trade and other payables 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

EQUITY 

Retained earnings 

TOTAL EQUITY 

2009 
$ 

3,430 
11 

3,441 

3,441 

3,000 

3,000 

3,000 

441 

441 

441 

2008 
$ 

3,050 
425,467 

428,517 

428,517 

427,189 

427,189 

427,189 

1,328 

1,328 

1,328 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUfH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

2009 

$ 

Revenues 

Grants 2,000 
Interest received 182 
Agency collections 2,281,920 .. 

Total revenues 2,284,102 

Expenses 

Audit of financial repon 3,000 
Capitation fees paid to Federal Office 2,281,920 

Total WRA Regulations disclosures 2,284,920 

Travel costs 
Finance costs 69 

2,284,989 
Total expenses 

Loss forthe year (887) 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income (887) 

2008 

$ 

555 
2,368,743 

2,369,298 

2,050 
2,368143 

2,370193 

70 

2,370,863 

(1,565) 

(1,565) 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
--·- - ---

FOR THE YEARENDED31DECEMBER2009 

- Ba-lance at 3lDecember 2007 

Total comprehensive income for 2008 

Balance at 31 December 2008 

Total comprehensive income for 2009 

Balance at 31 December 2009 

Retained 
Earnings 

$ 

2,893 

(1,565) 

1,328 

(887) 

441 

TOTAL 

$ 

2,893 

(1,565) 

1,328 

(887) 

441 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

2009 2008 

$ $ 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Grnnts received 2,000 
Membership fees of the AEU 2,281,920 1,944,053 
Interest received 171 550 
Payments in the course of operations {2,283,711) (1,944,122) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 380 481 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANONG 
ACTIVITIES 

Net increase in cash held 380 481 

Cash at beginning of year 3,050 2,569 

Cash at end of the year 3,430 3,050 





Grant Thornton 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Grant Thornton Audit Ply ltd 
ABN 25 034 787 757 

Level17, 383 Kent Street 
Sydney NSW 2000 
PO Locked Bag 0800 
QVB Post Office 
Sydney NSW 1230 

T +61 2 8297 2400 
F +61 2 9299 4445 
E infa.nsw@granltbornton.com.au 
W www.grantthornton.com.au 

To the Members of the Australian Education Union (New South Wales 
Branch) 

We have audited the accompanying concise financial report of Australia Education Union 

(New South Wales Branch), comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 

December 2009, and the statement of comprehensive income and statement of cash flows 

for, and related notes, which was derived from the financial report of Australian Education 

Union (New South Wales Branch) for the year ended 31 December 2009. We expressed an 

unmodified auditor's opinion on that financial report in our auditor's report dated 13 March 

2010. 

Responsibility of the Committee of Management for the financial 
statements 

The Committee of Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 

the summarised financial statements. 

Auditor's responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the concise financial report based on our 
procedures, which were conducted in accordance. with Australian Auditing Standards. These 
Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to 
audit engagements. 

Independence 

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the applicable independence requirements 

of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board. 

Grant ThomlonAustralia United is a member firm vriltin Grcm Thornton International Ud. Grant Thomloolntema!ional Ud aod the memberfinns are not a v.olfd'Mda p.rtlerstip. GJ"Ndlhomloo Auslrafia lisrited, together 
v.illl its subsiciaries md relaled rities, dOOvers its ser\'ices independently in Auslrafa. 

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation 
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0 Grant Thornton 

Auditor's o~inion 
In our opinion, the information reported in the concise financial report is consistent, in all 
material respects, with the financial report &om which it was derived and complies with the 
Accounting StandardAASB 101: Presentation of Financial Statements. For a better 
understanding of the financial position of Australian Education Union (New South Wales 
Branch) as at 31 December 2009, its financial performance for the year ended and the scope 
of our audit, the concise financial report should be read in conjunction with the unabridged 
financial report and the auditor's report thereon. 

~'""'~~~\~~~ 
GRANT THORNTON AUDIT PTY LTD 
Chartered Accountants 

M A Adam-Smith 

Director -Audit & Assurance 

Sydney, 14 August 2010 
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'?51~ i -· /61 ............................... -..... . 
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Acting Branch Secretary 
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ABN: 86 600150 697 

FINANCIAL REPORT 
31 DECEMBER 2009 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

Your committee present the report on the union for the financial year ended 31 December 2009. 

Members of Committee 

The name of the members of committee of management in office at any time during or since the 
end of the financial year is : 

Gary Zadkovich Brenda Seymour 
Nola Edsall Pamela Gregg 
John Irving Robert Lipscombe 
Garry Grant Sue Simpson 
John Dixon Deborah Marten 

~~~~~~----~~-±P"flh:il~t~:-. 13-fifira~:acl!eleyv-·---------=L~------

Michael De Wall Frank Barnes 
Nicole Calnan Wendy G.rrrie 
Kathy Deacon Jenny Diamond 
David Ferguson Janet Hannaford 
Dennis Long Cllarmaine O'Sheades 
Debbie Westacott David Wynne 

Sui-Linn White 
Geoff Turnbull 
Maurie Mulheron 
Peter Wilson 
Maree O'Halloran 

- - _.!.....___ --~--- ---

~·~-------------

Rod Brown 
Peter de Graff 
Sally Edsall 
Joan Lemaire 
Fionie Stavert 

The members of committee of management have been in office since the start of the financial year to 
the date of this report unless otherwise stated. 

Opernting Results 
The loss of the union for the financial year was $887 (2008: loss of $1,565). 

Review of Operntions 
A review of the operations of the union during the financial year and the results of those operations 
found that during the year, the entity continued to engage in its principal activity, the results of which 
are disclosed in the attached financial statements. 

Significant Changes in State of Affairs 
No significant changes in the state of affairs of the union occurred during the financial year. 

Principal Activity 
The principal activity of the entity during the financial year was promotion of union activities within 
the education sector. No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the year. 

After Balance Date Events 
No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly 
affected or may significantly affect the operations of the union, the results of those operations, or the 
state of affairs of the union in future financial years. 

Employees/Members 
The union did not have any employees during the year. The number of financial members at 31 
December 2009 was 62,419 (2008: 62,403} 

1 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

Superannuation Trustees 
No officer or member of the organisation holds a position as a trustee or director of a 
superannuation entity or exempt public sector superannuation scheme where the criterion 
for holding such position is that they are an officer or member of an organisation. 

Rights of members to resign 

Members may resign from the union in accordance with rule 17, which reads as follows: 
"17- Resignation from membership and termination of eligibility 

(3) A member may resign from the Union by written notice addressed to and delivered to the 
Secretary of the Branch to which the member is attached. 

( 4) A notice of resignation from membership takes effect:-
( a) where the member ceases to be eligible to become a member of the Union-

(~ on the day on which the notice is received at the office of the relevant Branch 
Secretary; or 

(ii) on the day specified in the notice, which is a day not earlier than the day when the 
member ceases to be eligible to become a member; which is later; or 

(b) in any other case -
(~ at the end of 2 weeks after the notice is received at the office of the relevant Branch 

Secretary; or 
(ii) on the day specified in the notice; whichever is later. 

(5) Any subscriptions, levies or fines which are due and payable but have not been paid by a 
former member in relation to a period before the member's resignation took effect, may be 
sued for and recovered in the name of the Union, in a court of competent jurisdiction, as a 
debt due to the Union. 

( 6) A notice delivered to the relevant Branch Secretary shall be taken to have been received bythe 
Union when it was delivered. 

(7) A notice of resignation that has been received at the office of the relevant Branch Secretary is 
not invalid because it was not addressed and delivered in accordance with sub-rule (1). 

(8) A resignation from membership is valid even if it is not effected in accordance with this 
section if the member is informed in writing by or on behalf of the Union that the resignation 
has been accepted. 

(9) A relevant Branch Secretary may accept a resignation from membership which is not effected 
in accordance with this Ru1e. 

(10) Where the relevant Branch Secretary accepts a resignation in accordance with the previous 
sub-rule the relevant Branch Secretary shall inform the member in writing that his/her 
resignation has been accepted. 

2 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEWSOUfH WALES BRANCH) 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Committee of Management: 

Name of officer: [insert name] L:!'o~\-J :PI~ 
Title of Office held: Act•"n ~~,. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

Note 2009 
$ 

Revenues 
Grants 2,000 
Interest received 182 
Membership fees of the AEU 2,281;920 

Total revenues 2,284,102 

Expenses 
AUdifoffiriancial report 5 3,000 
Capitation fees paid to Federal Office 2,281,920 

Total WRA Regulations disclosures 2,284,920 

Travel costs 
Finance costs 69 

Total expenses 2,284,989 

Loss forthe year (887) 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income (887) 

2008 
$ 

555 
2,368,743 

2,369,298 

2,050 
2,368,743 

2,370,793 

70 

2,370,863 

(1,565) 

(1,565) 

The Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

Retained 
Earnings 

$ 

Balance at 31 December 2007 2,893 

Total comprehensive income for 2008 (1,565) 

Balance at 31 December 2008 1,328 

Total comprehensive income for 2009 (887) 

Balance at 31 December 2009 441 

TOTAL 

$ 

2,893 

(1,565) 

1,328 

(887) 

441 

The Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANOAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Preparation 

The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards, including Australian Accounting Interpretations and other 
authorative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board as well as the 
requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. Compliance with Australian 
Accounting Standards ensures that the financials statements and notes also complywith International 
Financial Reporting Standards. 

The financial report is prepared on an accrual basis and is based on historical costs and does not take 
mto account changing money values, or except where stated, the current value of non-monetary 
assets. 

The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated. 

(a) Income Tax 

No provision for income tax is necessary as the Australian Education Union {New South Wales 
Branch) is exempt from tax under Sec 23(f) for the Income Tax Assessment Act. 

(b) Revenue 

Grant revenue is recognised in the period in which it is received. Grant revenue is received from the 
New South Wales Teachers Federation( the associated body) and appears in in that associated bodies 
audited financial statements. 

Membership fees of the Australian Education Union( AE U) are recognised for the financial year to 
which they relate. Membership fees of the AEU received in advance are recognised as a liability at 
balance date. 

Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates applicable 
to those assets. 

(c) Financial Risk management objectives and policies 

The entity's principal financial instrument comprises receivables, payables and bank loans, cash and 
short term deposits. The entity manages credit risk in relation to trade receivables by undertaking 
transactions with organisations with good credit ratings. 
The entity does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single debtor or group of 
debtors under financial instruments entered into by it. 

The consolidated entity manages its exposure to key financial risks including interest rate risk, credit 
risk and liquidity risk The consolidated entity uses different methods of measure and manages 
different types of risk to which it is exposed. These include monitoring levels of exposure to interest 
rate and assessments of market forecasts for interest rate prices. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

NOTES TO THE FINANOAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

NOTE 3: RELATED PARTY INFORMATION 

(a) Executive Officers 

The Chief Executive Officer (Branch Secretary) during the year was John Irving. 

Persons holding positions as executive (committee of management) members 
during the year were: 

Gary Zadkovich Frank Barnes 
Nola Edsall Kathy Deacon 
John Dixon Robert Lipscombe 

-

Garry-Brant~======l;· ~pson 

Jenny Diamond 
Geoff Turnbull 
Maurie Mulheron 
&dlyE~ll ~ ----------~ 

Brenda Seymour Deborah Marten 
Peter Wilson Linda Simon 
Phil Bradley Debbie Westacott 

Maree O'Halloran 
Fionie Stavert 
David Wynne 

No remuneration was received by Officers or Executive members during the year. 

(b) Related party transactions 

Membership fees of the AEU, paid to the Australian Education Union during 2009 was $2,281,920 
(2008: $2,368,7 4 3). Membership fees of the AE U were received from the New South Wales Teachers 
Federation for the same amount. Membership fees of the AEU are budgeted for and appear in the 
audited financial statements of the New South Wales Teachers Federation( the associated bod}Q, for 
payment to the Australian Education Union( New South Wales Branch) 

NOTE 4: NOTICE REQUIRED UNDER THE FAIR WORK (REGISTERED 
ORGANISATIONS) ACf 2009 

In accordance with the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, the 
attention of members is drawn to the following provisions of the Act:-

S.272 

(1) A member of the reporting unit, or a Registrar, may apply to the reporting unit for 

specified prescribed information in relation to the reporting unit to be made available to 
the person making the application. 

(2) The application must be in writing and must specify the period with which, and the 
manner in which, the information is to be made available. The period must not be less 
than 14 days after the application is given to the reporting unit. 

(3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1). 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
(NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANOAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

NOTE 7: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The Branch does not participate in the use of derivative financial instruments. 

(a) Oedit Risk 

The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or any other security, at 
balance date to recognise financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any provision for doubtful 
debts, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements. 

The Branch does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single debtor or group of debtors 
under financial instruments entered into by the Branch. ======================== ~~-=------_--_---=------::--=~---~---~:---= 
(b) Net Fair Values 

The net fair values of debtors, loans and other amounts are determined by discounting the cash 
flows, at the market interest rates of similar securities, to their present values. 

The carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities does not exceed their net fair value. 

(c) Interest Rate Risk 

The Branch exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that a financial instrument's value will 
fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates is minimal as all financial assets and liabilities 
are non-interest bearing. 

(d) Sensitivity Analysis 

The Branch has no exposure to interest rate risk 

NOTE 8: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly 
affected or may significantly affect the operations of the union, the results of those operations, or the 
state of affairs of the union in future financial years. 

NOTE 9: ORGANISATION DETAILS 

The registered office and principal place of business of the Australian Education Union (New South 
Wales Branch) is 23-33 Mary Street Surry Hills. 
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0 Grant Thornton 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Grant Thornton Audit Ply Ltd 
ACN 130 913 594 

Level 17, 383 Kent Street 
Sydney NSW 2000 
PO Locked Bag Q800 
QVB Post Office 
Sydney NSW 1230 

T +61 2 8297 2400 
F +61 2 9299 4445 
E info.nsw@grantthornton.com.au 

;graf\tthorntorr.cm r r.au 

To the Members of Australian Education Union (New South Wales· Branch) 

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Australian Education Union (New 
South Wales Branch) which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 
December 2009, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in 
equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory notes to the financial statements and the 
statement by the Committee of Management of Australian Education Union (New South 
Wales Branch). 

Responsibility of the Committee of Management for the financial report 
The Committee of Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the 
Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 
2009. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting 
policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. In Note 
1 the Committee of Management also states, in accordance with Accounting Standard 
AASB 101: Presentation of Financial Statements, that compliance with the Australian 
equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards ensures that the financial report, 
comprising the financial statements and notes, complies with International Financial 
Reporting Standards. 

Auditor's responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, which require us to 
comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial report is free of 
material misstatement. 

G!an!ThomlonAusta~aUniled~ amembertrm -· Gr.rn Thom!on lnlemational Ud.Grant TOOmton lnlemafionaiUd andlhe memberirrns are nd a IIOI1dv.ide po1ners!ip. Goo TOOmtooAuslralialiriled. togather 
v.i1h ils wbOdialles and ralaled entities. delive1> is S8Mces inlependenUy in Ausllllia 

Liability HmHed by a scheme approved under Professional Slandards Legislafion 
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EDUCATiON August 30, 2010 

Australian ducation Union 
( SWBranch) 

' these accounts are a concise view 
' of the activities of the NSW Branch 
of the federal union, the Australian 
Education Union. 

The 2009 year was one in which 
very little activity occurred and the 
financial activity was mostly lim­
ited to the receipt of funds collected 
on behalf of the Federal branch of the 
union by the NSW Teachers Federa­
tion. These funds were received and 
then transferred to the federal body. 

~-
JohnDi;wn 
Acting Branch Secretary 

Su.mm.acy of the fi.na:ttcial 
statements fo:r the 
financial year ended 3) _ 
Deeembe:r 2009 
The financial statements of the 
Union have been audited in accord­
ance with the provisions of the Fair 
Work (Registered Organisations) Act 
2009 and the following summary 
is provided for members in accord- . 
ance with Section 279(2) of the Act. 

A copy of the Auditors' Report, 
Accounts and Statements will be 
supplied free of charge to members 
who request same. 

Certificates required to be given 
under the Act by the Accounting 
Officer and the Committee ofMan­
agement have been completed in 
accordance with the provisions of 
the Act and contain no qualifica­
tions. The financial state:rp.ents, 
specific disclosures and other in­
formation included in the concise 
financial report are derived from, 
and are consistent with, the full fi­
nancial report of Australian Educa­
tion Union (NSWBranch). 

In accordance with the require­
ments of the Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) Act 2009, the atten­
tion of members is drawn to the 
provisions of Section 274 (1) and (2) 

and (3), which read as follows: 
(1) A member of an organisation, or a 
Registrar, may apply to the organisa­
tion for specified prescribed informa­
tion in relation to the organisation. 
(2) An organisation shall, on appli­
cation made under subsection (1) 
by a member of the organisation or 
a Registrar, make the specified in­
formation available to the member 
or Registrar in such a manner, and 
within such time, as prescribed. 
(3) A Registrar may only make an ap-

plication under subsection (1) at there­
quest of a member of the organisation 
concerned, and the Registrar shall 
provide to a member information re­
ceived because of an application made 
atthe request of the member. 

Operating n,'Po:rt fo.r the 
fi.nanc.ial year ended 31 
December 2009 
Your committee present the report 
on the union for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2009. 

Members of Committee 
The name ofthe members of com­
mittee of management in office at 
any time during or since the end of 
the financial year is: 

Gary Zadkovich, Brenda Sey­
mour, Sui-Linn White, Nola Edsall, 
Pamela Gregg, Geoff Turnbull, John 
Irving, Robert Lipscombe, Maurie 
Mulheron, Garry Grant, Sue Simp­
son, Peter Wilson, John Dixon, Debo­
rah Marten, Maree O'Halloran, Phil 
Bradley, Linda Simon, KhyiahAngel, 
Michael de Wall, Frank Barnes, Rod 
Brown, Nicole Calnan, Wendy Currie, 
Peter de Graa:ff, Kathy Deacon, Jenny 
Diamond, Sally Edsall, David Fergu­
son, Janet Hannaford, Joan Lemaire, 
Dennis Long, Charmaine O'Sheades, 
Fionie Stavert, Debbie Westacott, 
David Wynne 

The members of committee of 
management have been in office 
since the start of the financial year 
to the date of this report unless oth­
erwise stated. 
Operating Results 
The loss of the union for the finan­
cial year was $887 (2008: loss of 
$1,565). 

Review of Operations 
A review of the operations of the 
union during the financial year 
and the results of those opera­
tions found that during the year, 
the entity continued to engage in 
its principal activity, the results of 
which are disclosed in the attached 
financial statements. 
Significant Changes in State of 

ties occurred during the year. 
After Balance Date Events 
No matters or circumstances have 
arisen since the end of the financial 
year which significantly affected or 
may significantly affect the opera­
tions of the union, the results of those 
operations, or the state of affairs of 
the union in future financial years. 
Employees/Members 
The union did not have any employ­
ees during the year. The number of 
financial members at 31 December 
2009 was 62,419 (2008: 62,403). 
Superannuation Trustees 
No officer or member of the organ­
isation holds a position as a trus" 
tee or director of a superannua­
tion entity or exempt public sector 
superannuation scheme where 
the criterion for holding such po­
sition is that they are an officer or 
member of an organisation. 
Rights of Members to Resign 
Members may resign from the 
union in accordance with rule 17, 

which reads as follows: 
"17- Resignation from member­

ship and termination of eligibility 
(3) A member may resign from the 
Union by written notice addressed 
to and delivered to the Secretary of 
the Branch to which the member is 
attached. 

(4) A notice of resignation from 
membership takes effect:-

(a) where the member ceases to 
be eligible to become a member of 
theUnion-

(i) on the day on which 
the notice is received at the office of 
the relevant Branch Secretary; or 

(ii) on the day specified in 
the notice, which is a day not earli­
er than the day when the member 
ceases to be eligible to become a 
member; whichever is later; or 

(b) in any other case-
(i) at the end of 2 weeks 

after the notice is received at the 
office of the relevant Branch Secre­
tary; or 

Affairs (ii) on the day specified in 
No significant changes in the state the notice; whichever is later. 
of affairs of the union occurred (5) Any subscriptions, levies or 
during the financial year. fines which are due and payable 
Principal Activity ~--put b~Y.~-not been paid by a former 
The principal activity of the e!ltity'" member in relation to a period 
during the financial year was pro- before the member's resignation 
motion of union activities within · took effect, may be sued for andre-
the education sector. No significant covered in the name of the Union, 
change in the nature of these activi- in a court of competent jurisdic-

tion, as a debt due to the Union. 
(6) A notice delivered to the rel­
evant Branch Secretary shall be 
taken to have been received by the 
Union when it was delivered. 
(7) A notice of resignation that 
has been received at the office of 
the relevant Branch Secretary is 
not invalid because it was not ad­
dressed and delivered in accord­
ance with sub-rule (1). 
(8) A resignation from membership· 
is valid even if it is not effected in 
accordance with this section if the 
member is informed in writing by 
or on behalf of the Union that the 
resignation has been accepted. 
(9) A relevant Branch Secretary 
may accept a resignation from 
membership which is not affected 
in accordance with this Rule. 
(10) Where the relevant Branch Secre­
tary accepts a resignation in accord­
ance with the previous sub-rule the 
rclevantBranchSecretaryshallinform 
the member in writingthathislherres­
ignationhas been accepted 
(11) On receipt of a written notice 
from a member that he/she has 
become ineligible for membership 
of the Union or a notice of resigna­
tion or on acceptance of a resigna­
tion which is not effected in accord­
ance with this Rule, the Branch 
Secretary shall, as soon as possi­
ble notify the Federal Secretary 
that the member has become inel­
igible for membership or that the 
member has resigned." 

On 14 August 2010 the Commit­
tee of Management of Australian 
Education Union (NSW Branch) 
passed the following resolution in 
relation to the general purpose fi­
nancial report (GPFR) of the Aus­
tralian Education Union (NSW 
Branch) for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2009: 

The Committee of Management 
declares in relation to the GPFR 
that in its opinion: 
(a) the financial statements and 
notes comply with Australian Ac­
counting Standards; 
(b) the financial statements and 
notes comply with the reporting 
guidelines; 
(c) the financial statements and 
notes give a true and fair view of 
the financial performance, finan-
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cial position and cash flows for the 
financial year to which they relate; 
(d) there are reasonable grounds to 
believe that the entity will be able 
to pay its debts as and when they 
become due and payable; 
(e) during the financial year to 
which the GPFR relates and since 
the end of that year: 

(i) meetings of the committee of 
management were held in accord­
ance with the rules of the organisa­
tion including the rules of a branch 
concerned; and 

(ii) the financial affairs have been 
managed in accordance with the 
rules of the organisation including 
the ruies of a branch concerned; and 

(fu) the financial records have been 
kept and :rnallrtained in accordance 
with the registration and accountabil­
ity of organisations (RAO) Schedule 
and the RAO Regulations; and 

(iv) where the organisation con­
sists of2 or more entities, the financial 
records of reporting unit have been 
kept, as far as practicable, in a consist­
ent manner to each of the other re­
porting units ofthe organisation; and 

(v) the information sought in any 
request of a member or a Registrar 
duly made under section 272 ofthe 
RAO Schedule has been furnished 
to the member ofRegistrar; and 

(vi) there h~s been compliance 
with any order for inspection of fi­
nancial records made"by the. Com­
mission under section 273 of the 
RAO Schedule. 

(vii) the organisation has not un­
dertaken any recovery of wages ac­
tiv;ity for the financial year. 
Signed in accordance with a resolution 
of the Committee of Management: 
~ 

c:~· 
John Dixon 
Acting Branch Secretary 
Dated this 14th day of August 2010 

Com.ntittre of 
l\!anagement.I-teportfur 
the fi:nandal Vl::aF ended 
31 DeremberZoOO 

In accordance with Section 253(2)(c) 
of the Fair Work (Registered Organisa­
tions) Act 2009, the Committee ofMan­
agement of the Australian Education 
Union(NSW Branch) passed the fullow­
ingresolution, in relation to the :financial 
reportofthe reportingunitfurthe finan-

cialyearended31 December2009: 
The Com:initt<;:e of Management 

deClares in relation to the financial 
report that in its opinion: 
(a) the financial statements and 
notes comply with the Australian 
Accounting Standards; 
(b) the financial statements and 
notes comply with .the reporting 
guidelines of the General Manager 
of Fair Work Australia; 
(c) the financial statements and 
notes give a true and fair view for 
the financial performance finan­
cial position and cash flows of the 
reporting urtit for the financial year 
to which they relate; 
(d) there are reasonable grounds to 
believe the reporting unit will be 
able to pay its debts as and when 
they become due and payable; 
(e) during the financial year to 
which the financial report relates 
and since the end of the year: 

(i) meetings of the committee of 
management were held in accord­
ance with the rules of the organisa­
tion including the rules of a branch 
concerned: and 

(ii) the financial affairs of the re~ 
porting unit have been managed 
in accordance with the rules of the 
organisation including the rules of 
the branch concerned; and 

(iii) the financial records of there­
portingunithave been kept and main­
tained in ac:cordance with the Fair 
Work (Registered Organisations) Act 
2009 and the .Fair Work, (Regi&tered 
Organisations) regulations2009; and 

(iv) no requests have been made 
by a member or a Registrar under 
section 272 of the Fair Work (Regis­
tered Organisations) Act 2009; and 

(v) no orders have been made by 
the Commission under section 273 
of the Fair Work (Registered Organi­
sations) Act 2009 during the period. 
(f) In relation to the recovery of 
wages activity: 

(i) There has been no such activi­
ty undertaken by the reporting unit. 

This report is .made in accord­
ance with a resolution of the Com­
mittee of Management dated 14 
August2010. 

~ 
John Dixon 
Acting Branch Secretary 
Dated: 14 August 2010 
Sydney, NSW 

"D.iscnssion and analysis 
of the :fin.ancia1 
statements. 
Information on Australian Ed­
ucation Union (NSW Branch) 
Financial Report 
The financial statements and dis­
closures in the concise financial 
report have been derived from the 
31 December 2009 financial report 
of Australian Education Union 
(NSW Branch). 

The discussion and analysis 
is provided to assist members in 
understanding the concise finan­
cial report. The discussion and 
analysis is based on Australian 
Education Union (NSW Branch) 
financial statements and the in­
formation contained in the con­
cise financial report has been de­
rived from the full2009 Financial 
Report of Australian Education 
Union (NSW Branch). 
Statement of Comprehensive 
Income 
Loss for the year of $887 was down 
$678 from the prior year (2008: loss 
of $1,565), largely due to receipt of 
$2,000 as grants from NSW Teach­
ers Federation. 

Membership fee income of 
the AEU of $2,281,920 decreased 
3.7% from the prior year (2008: 
$2,368,743) due to reduced activity 
on a federal level. 
Statement of Financial Position 
Total assets decreased by $425,076 
from $42~;517 in 2008 to $3,4·i1 in 
2009, representing a decrease of 
99%. This decrease was mainly at­
tributable to a decrease in trade 
and other payables for the same 
amount. 

Total liabilities have decreased 
by $424,189 from $427,189 in 2008 
to $3,000 in 2009 due to a decrease 
in trade and other receivables for 
the same amount. 

Equity has decreased by 67% from 
$1,328 in 2008 to $441 in 2009. This 
was due to the net loss for the year de­
creasing retained earnings by $887. 
Cash Flow Statement 
Cash has increased by $380 from 
$3,050 in 2008 to $3,430 in 2009 rep­
resenting an increase of 12%. The 
net cash inflow from operating ac­
tivities has decreased by $101 from 
$481 in 2008 to $380 in 2009 due to 
increased payments in the course 
of operations. 

EDUCATiON August30, 2010 

; Statement of financial positio:r- as at 31 December 2009 
2009 2008 

fcVRRENT ASSETS 
~Cash and cash equivalents. 
i Trade and other receivables 
[TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 
[TOTAL ASSETS 
\CURRENT LIABJLITIES 
t Trade and other payables 
~TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 
i TOTAL LIABILITIES 
i 
fNETASSETS 
EQUITY 

$ $ 

3,430 
11 

3,441 
3,441 

3,000 
3,000 
3,000 

441 

3,050 
425,467 
428,517 
428,517 

427,189 
427,189 
427,189 

1,328 

l Retained earnings 441 1,328 
!TOTALEQUITY 441 1,328 
I 

~ Statementofcom~=~fortheyearended31 

\Revenues 
!Grants 
) Interest received 
\Agency collections 
f Total revenues 
)Expenses 
I Audit of financial report 
I Capitation fees paid to Federal Office 
\ Total WRA Regulations disclosures 
~Travel costs 
I Finance costs 
i Total expenses 
i Loss for the year 
i Other comprehensive income 
I Total comprehensive income 

2009 
$ 

2,000 
182 

2,281,920 
2,284,102 

2008 
$ 

555 
2,368,743 
2,369,298 

3,000 2,050 
2,281,920 2,368,743 
2,284,920 2,370,793 

---'--'---

69 70 
2,284,989 __ _:2,_37_0.;..,8_6_3 

----~~~88_~~---~(1~,5~6~~~ 

(887) (1,565) 

i Statetnentofcbangesinequjtyfurtbeyearendtrl31 December2009 

f:Balance at 31 December 2007 
[ Total comprehensive income for 2008 

I Balance at 31 December 2008 
l -

! Total comprehensive ,income for 2009 
I· , " 

f, Balance at 31 December 2009 

Retained 
Earnings 

TOTAL 

$ $ 
2,893 2,893 

(1,565) (1,565) 

1,328 1,328 

(887) __ ......;(.._88_7~) 

441 441 

Statement of cash flows for the financial year ended 31 
December 2009 

i CASHFLOWSFROMOPERATING 
~ACTMTIES 
~Grants received 
!Membership fees of the AEU 
r Interest received 
t Payments in the course of operations 
(Net cash provided by operating activities 
I, 

[ CASHFLOWSFROMINVESTING 
i ACTIVITI~S 

I CASHFLOWSFROMFINANCING 
jACTMTIES 
! Net increase in cash held 
! Cash at beginning ofyear 
i Cash at end of the year 
I 

2009 
$ 

2,000 

2008 
$ 

2,281,920 1,944,053 
171 550 

(2,283,711) (1,944,122) 
380 481 ____ ..;._ 

380 481 
3,050 2,569 

3,430 3,050 

Independent Auditor'·s Re·port to the members, of the 
Australian Education Union (NSW Branch) 

We have audited the accompanying 
concise financial report of Austral­
ia Education Union (NSW Branch), 
comprising the statement of finan­
cial position as at 31 December 2009, 

and the statement of comprehensive 
income and statement of cash flows 
for, and related notes, which was de­
rived from the financial report of 
Australian Education Union (NSW 
Branch) for the year ended 31 De­
cember 2009. We expressed an un­
modified auditor's opinion on that fi-

nancial report in our auditor's report 
dated 13 March 2010. 

Responsibiffi:y of 
the Commitfee:of 
Management for the 
.financia:lstatenrents 
The Committee of Management is 
responsible for the preparation and 
fair presentation of the summa­
rised financial statements. 
.A:udiro.r's .respo.nsihiliey ... 
Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on the concise financial 

report based on our procedures, 
which were conducted in accord­
ance with Australian Auditing 
Standards. These Auditing Stand­
ards require that we comply with 
relevant ethical requirements relat­
ing to audit engagements. 
Independence 
In conducting our audit, we have 
complied with the applicable inde­
pendence requirements of the Ac­
counting Professional and Ethical 
Standards Board. 

Auditor's opi:nion 
In our opinion, the information 
reported in the concise financial 
report is consistent, in all material 
respects, with the financial report 
from which it was derived and com­
plies with the Accounting Standard 
AASB 101: Presentation of Finan­
cial Statements. For a better under­
standing of the financial position of 
Australian Education Union (NSW 
Branch) as at 31 December 2009, its 
financial performance for the year 

ended and the scope of our audit, 
the concise financial report should 
be read in conjunction with the un­
abridged financial report and the 
auditor's report thereon. 

. ~-+ 1\.-..-~- ~.A.~\-~~ 
Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd 
Chartered Accountants 

M A Adam-Smith 
Director - Audit & Assurance 
Sydney, 14 August 2010 
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